RETURN OFFERS TO:

Offer receiving e-mail:

bids-offres@canadacouncil.ca

REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFERS

Proposal to: Canada Council for the Arts

We hereby offer to sell to the Canada Council for the Arts, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods and services listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out therefor.

Title Media Relations and Communications Services		Date January 15, 2024		
Solicitation No. CANADACOUNCIL002COMM				
Client Reference No. CANADACOUNCIL002COMM				
Solicitation Closes at:				
2:00 p.m. EDT (Eastern Daylight Time)				
On: February 16, 2024				
F.O.B. Destination	Taxes See herein	Duty See herein		
Destination of Goods and Services See herein				

Instructions

See herein

Address Inquiries to:

Julie Bolduc

Email: bids-offres@canadacouncil.ca

TABLE OF CONTENTS

-	T FOR STANDING OFFERS	
PART 1	- GENERAL INFORMATION	4
1.1	INTRODUCTION	
1.1	Summary	
1.3	TRADE AGREEMENTS	
1.4	Debriefings	
DART 2	OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS	
2.1	STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS.	
2.2	SUBMISSION OF OFFERS	
2.3	IMPROVEMENT OF REQUIREMENT DURING THE SOLICITATION PERIOD	
2.4	ENQUIRIES - REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFERS	
2.5	APPLICABLE LAWS	
PART 3	OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	(
3.1	OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	
PART 4	EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION	
4.1	EVALUATION PROCEDURES	
4.1.1	TECHNICAL EVALUATION	
4.1.1.1	JOINT VENTURE EXPERIENCE	
	MANDATORY TECHNICAL CRITERIA	
4.1.2	FINANCIAL EVALUATION	
4.2	BASIS OF SELECTION	
PART 5	- CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
	CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED WITH THE OFFER	
5.1		
5.1.1	RATE OR PRICE CERTIFICATION	
PART 6	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	10
PART 7	STANDING OFFER	10
7.1	Offer	10
7.2	SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	
7.3	TERM OF STANDING OFFER	
7.3.1	PERIOD OF THE STANDING OFFER	1
7.3.2	EXTENSION OF THE STANDING OFFER	1
7.4	DELIVERY POINTS	1
7.5	AUTHORITIES	
7.5.1	STANDING OFFER AUTHORITY	1
7.5.2	PROJECT AUTHORITY	1
7.5.3	Offeror's Representative	1
7.6	IDENTIFIED USERS	1
7.7	Call-up Procedures	
7.7.1	As-and-when-requested Call-ups	1
7.7.2	ALLOCATION OF CALL-UPS	
7.7.3	CALL-UP INSTRUMENT	
7.8	PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS	
7.9	CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
7.9.1	COMPLIANCE	
7.10	APPLICABLE LAWS	14
PART 8	RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	1!

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

8.1	STATEMENT OF WORKTERM OF CONTRACT	15
8.2	TERM OF CONTRACT	15
8.2.1	DELIVERY DATE	15
8.3	PAYMENT	15
8.3.1	Basis of Payment	15
8.3.2	LIMITATION OF PRICE	15
8.4	Invoicing Instructions	15
ANNEX	"A"	17
STATE	EMENT OF WORK	17
ANNEX	"B"	19
BASIS	OF PAYMENT	19
ANNEX	"C"	20
EVAL	JATION GUIDE	20

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Introduction

The Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) is divided into eight parts plus attachments and annexes, as follows:

- Part 1 General Information: provides a general description of the requirement;
- Part 2 Offeror Instructions: provides the instructions applicable to the clauses and conditions of the RFSO;
- Part 3 Offer Preparation Instructions: provides Offerors with instructions on how to prepare their offer to address the evaluation criteria specified;
- Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria which must be addressed in the offer, and the basis of selection;
- Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided;
- Part 6 not applicable
- Part 7 Standing Offer, includes the Standing Offer containing the offer from the Offeror and the applicable clauses and conditions;
- Part 8 Resulting Contract Clauses: includes the clauses and conditions which will apply to any contract resulting from a call-up made pursuant to the Standing Offer.

The Annexes include the Statement of Work, the Basis of Payment and the Evaluation Guide.

1.2 Summary

The Canada Council for the Arts (the Canada Council) actively promotes a wide variety of projects, initiatives and campaigns each year. The Communications and Engagement team at the Canada Council does not have the capacity to lead all aspects of media planning and relations for all initiatives the organization undertakes in local, regional, and international settings, and will occasionally call upon external suppliers for short and longer-term support.

The intent of this solicitation is to establish a list of prequalified suppliers for services which include but are not limited to: public and media relations, issues management, media strategy, communications planning, campaign execution, event management, media monitoring and reporting.

1.3 Trade Agreements

This solicitation is not subject to any trade agreements.

1.4 Debriefings

Offerors may request a debriefing on the results of the request for Standing Offers process. Offerors should make the request to the Canada Council within 15 working days of receipt of the results of the request for Standing Offers process. At the Canada Council's discretion, the debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

PART 2 - OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS

2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

Offerors who submit an offer agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the RFSO and accept the clauses and conditions of the Standing Offer and resulting contract(s).

2.2 Submission of Offers

Offers must be submitted only to the offer receiving e-mail address by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of this offer solicitation.

bids-offres@canadacouncil.ca

DO NOT SEND OFFERS TO ANY OTHER BID RECEIVING UNIT OR E-MAIL ADDRESS

2.3 Improvement of Requirement during the Solicitation Period

Should Offerors consider that the specifications or Statement of Work contained in the RFSO could be improved technically or technologically, Offerors are invited to make suggestions, in writing, to the Standing Offer Authority named in the RFSO. Offerors must clearly outline the suggested improvement as well as the reason for the suggestion. Suggestions that do not restrict the level of competition nor favour a particular Offeror will be given consideration provided they are submitted to the Standing Offer Authority at the latest on January 26th, 2024. The Canada Council will have the right to accept or reject any or all suggestions.

2.4 Enquiries - Request for Standing Offers

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Standing Offer Authority <u>no later than February</u> **5**th, **2024**. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Offerors should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the RFSO to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by Offerors to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable the Canada Council to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where the Canada Council determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. The Canada Council may edit the question(s) or may request that Offerors do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered to all Offerors. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all Offerors may not be answered by the Canada Council.

2.5 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

PART 3 - OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

3.1 Offer Preparation Instructions

The Canada Council requests that the offer be gathered per section and separated as follows:

Section I: Technical Bid - One soft copy (PDF) sent by electronic mail
Section II: Financial Bid - One soft copy (PDF) sent by electronic mail
Section III: Certifications - One soft copy (PDF) sent by electronic mail

Section IV: Additional Information - One soft copy (PDF) sent by electronic mail

Due to the nature of the RFSO, offers transmitted by CPC Connect service and by facsimile will not be accepted.

Prices must appear in the financial offer only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the offer.

The Canada Council email attachment size limit is 10MB. Emails exceeding 10MB will not be received. Offerors may split their submitted content into multiple emails by identifying, for example, 1 of 3, 2 of 3, etc.

It is the sole responsibility of the Offeror to ensure a timely submission of their offer. The Canada Council will not be responsible for late offers received at destination after the closing time, even if it was submitted before. Offers must be submitted only to the offer receiving e-mail address by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of this bid solicitation: bids-offres@canadacouncil.ca

OFFERS SENT TO ANY OTHER BID RECEIVING UNIT OR E-MAIL ADDRESS MAY NOT BE EVALUATED.

Section I: Technical Offer

In their technical offer, Offerors should explain and demonstrate how they propose to meet the requirements and how they will carry out the work.

Section II: Financial Offer

Offerors must submit their financial offer in accordance with Annex B, Basis of Payment.

Firm Rates

The Offeror is required to submit firm prices, rates or both that will apply for the entire period of the Standing Offer, including any option periods.

Rates - Resources

Offerors must submit firm rates for all categories of resources listed in Annex "B".

Section III: Certifications

Offerors must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

<u>Section IV: Additional Information</u> - One soft copy (PDF) sent by electronic mail Any additional information requested by this solicitation is to be submitted separately as Section IV.

CANADACOUNCIL002COMM PCS01

PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

4.1 Evaluation Procedures

<u>Note:</u> Unless specified otherwise in the RFSO, the Canada Council will evaluate only the documentation provided with an Offeror's offer. The Canada Council will not evaluate information such as references to Web site addresses where additional information can be found, or technical manuals or brochures not submitted with the offer.

Offers will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the Request for Standing Offers including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.

An evaluation team composed of representatives of the Canada Council will evaluate the offers.

4.1.1 Technical Evaluation

4.1.1.1 Joint Venture Experience

- a) Where the Offeror is a joint venture with existing experience as that joint venture, it may submit the experience that it has obtained as that joint venture.
 - <u>Example:</u> An Offeror is a joint venture consisting of members L and O. A request for Standing Offers requires that the Offeror demonstrate experience providing maintenance and help desk services for a period of 24 months to a customer with at least 10,000 users. As a joint venture (consisting of members L and O), the Offeror has previously done the work. This Offeror can use this experience to meet the requirement. If member L obtained this experience while in a joint venture with a third-party N, however, that experience cannot be used because the third-party N is not part of the joint venture that is bidding.
- b) A joint venture Offeror may rely on the experience of one of its members to meet any given technical criterion of this request for Standing Offers.
 - <u>Example:</u> A Offeror is a joint venture consisting of members X, Y and Z. If a solicitation requires: (a) that the Offeror have 3 years of experience providing maintenance service, and (b) that the Offeror have 2 years of experience integrating hardware with complex networks, then each of these two requirements can be met by a different member of the joint venture. However, for a single criterion, such as the requirement for 3 years of experience providing maintenance services, the Offeror cannot indicate that each of members X, Y and Z has one year of experience, totaling 3 years. Such a response would be declared non-responsive.
- c) Joint venture members cannot pool their abilities with other joint venture members to satisfy a single technical criterion of this request for Standing Offer. However, a joint venture member can pool its individual experience with the experience of the joint venture itself. Wherever substantiation of a criterion is required, the Offeror is requested to indicate which joint venture member satisfies the requirement. If the Offeror has not identified which joint venture member satisfies the requirement, the Canada Council will provide an opportunity to the Offeror to submit this information during the evaluation period. If the Offeror does not submit this information within the period set by the Standing Offer Authority, its bid will be declared non-responsive.

<u>Example:</u> An Offeror is a joint venture consisting of members A and B. If a request for Standing Offers requires that the Offeror demonstrate experience providing resources for a minimum number of 100 billable days, the Offeror may demonstrate that experience by submitting either:

- Contracts all signed by A;
- Contracts all signed by B; or
- Contracts all signed by A and B in joint venture, or
- o Contracts signed by A and contracts signed by A and B in joint venture, or
- Contracts signed by B and contracts signed by A and B in joint venture.

that show in total 100 billable days.

d) Any Offeror with questions regarding the way in which a joint venture bid will be evaluated should raise such questions through the Enquiries process as early as possible during the solicitation period.

4.1.1.2 Mandatory Technical Criteria (See Annex C for further information)

Number	Criterion	
M1	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years of promotional activities involving a variety of projects, initiatives, awards and campaigns.	
M2	Provide one (1) example for each area noted below, completed in the last three (3) years, where you developed, implemented, and reported on media or PR strategies at:	
	the national level in at least 6 Canadian provinces/territories the international level in at least 2 countries	
M3	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years, where you successfully implemented a plan to reach broad and diverse audience by creating distribution lists, developing targeted approaches to media and community outreach, writing pitches, research and development of story lines and managing embargos.	
M4	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years, where you coordinated media interviews, op-eds, feature publications, blog posts or digital content.	
M5	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years of when you coordinated media interviews for a spokesperson.	
M6	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years, where you successfully worked with clients to align and amplify project deliverables.	

4.1.2 Financial Evaluation

The price of the offer will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, Applicable Taxes excluded, FOB destination, Canadian customs duties and excise taxes included.

4.2 Basis of Selection

An offer must comply with the requirements of the Request for Standing Offers and meet all mandatory technical evaluation criteria to be declared responsive. The 7 responsive offers with the lowest evaluated prices will be recommended for issuance of a Standing Offer.

PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Offerors must provide the required certifications and additional information to be issued a Standing Offer.

Unless specified otherwise, the Canada Council will declare an offer non-responsive, will have the right to set-aside a Standing Offer, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the offeror is found to be untrue whether made knowingly or unknowingly during the offer evaluation period, during the Standing Offer period, or during the contract period.

The Canada Council will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the offeror's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Canada Council will render the offer non-responsive, result in the setting aside of the Standing Offer or constitute a default under the Contract/Call-up.

5.1 Certifications Required with the Offer

Offerors must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their offer.

5.1.1 Rate or Price Certification

The Offeror certifies that the price proposed:

- a. is not in excess of the lowest price charged anyone else, including the offeror's most favoured customer, for the like quality and quantity of the goods, services or both; and
- b. does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess of that normally obtained by the offeror on the sale of goods, services or both of like quality and quantity.

Officer of the Bidder empowered to bind bidder Name and position	Date	

PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

[Not required]

PART 7 - STANDING OFFER

7.1 Offer

The offeror offers to perform the Work in accordance with the Statement of Work at Annex "A".

7.2 Security Requirements

There is no security requirement applicable to the Standing Offer. However, there may a few individual call-ups which have the requirement to hold personal information, including names, addresses, preferences, and other information (collectively the "Personal Information"). Personal Information is subject to the Access to Information Act s. 20(1)(b).

To be treated confidentially, Personal Information must meet all four of the following conditions: The information must be:

- 1. financial, commercial, scientific or technical information;
- 2. "confidential" three indicators of confidentiality:
 - i. the information contained in the record is not available from other sources in the public domain or obtainable by observation or independent study by a member of the public acting on his or her own;
 - ii. the circumstances in which the information originates and is communicated give rise to a reasonable expectation that it will not be disclosed; and
 - iii. the information, whether provided by law or supplied voluntarily, is communicated to the government within a relationship that is either fiduciary or not contrary to the public interest and that will be fostered for the public benefit by confidential communication;
- 3. supplied to a government institution by a third-party; and
- 4. treated consistently in a confidential manner by the third-party.

The offeror acknowledges and agrees that the Canada Council shall continue to have all rights, title, and interest in and to the Personal Information. The offeror shall treat the Personal Information with the same reasonable degree of care that the contractor employs, or would employ, in protecting its own proprietary information and in preventing any unauthorized acquisition or use thereof.

The offeror acknowledges and agrees that it shall not, during the term of this Standing Offer or at any time thereafter, directly or indirectly, disclose or grant access to the Personal Information to any person, firm, association, corporation or any other entity, nor shall it use or exploit the Personal Information for any purpose other than on behalf of the Canada Council.

The provisions of this Clause shall not apply to: information received in good faith by the offeror from a third-party lawfully in possession thereof and having no obligation to keep such information confidential and information which was publicly known at the time of its receipt by the offeror or has become publicly known other than by a breach of this Standing Offer or other action by the Offeror.

Personal information will only be used for the purposes described in this Standing Offer. If the Offeror is uncertain whether information is personal information, the Offeror will consult with the Project Authority. When sensitive and/or current personal information is being used for this contract, the Offeror will undertake to:

- (a) Render information anonymous (i.e., coded, name-stripped) at the earliest time possible;
- (b) Restrict any data linkages to those which have been approved and will not perform other matches without written authorization;

CANADACOUNCILUUZCOIVIIVI 1 C501

When specifically authorized by the Project Authority, the Offeror will limit contact with data subjects and will guarantee any additional information obtained from those individuals be given the same level of confidentiality as maintained for the original data;

(c) Immediately inform the Project Authority of any breaches involving personal information. The Offeror will assume full responsibility for complying with the Canada Council standards for personal information found in this contract and with the Privacy Act, including its collection, use, retention and disposition, and will be accountable for any breach in this process. The Canada Council reserves the right to examine any results or reports in order to verify that there has been no compromise of the personal information.

7.3 Term of Standing Offer

7.3.1 Period of the Standing Offer

The period for making call-ups and providing services against the Standing Offer is from <u>Standing</u> <u>Offer issuance date</u> to <u>2 years later</u> inclusively. **[dates to be filled in when Standing Offer is issued]**

7.3.2 Extension of the Standing Offer

If the Standing Offer is authorized for use beyond the initial period, the Offeror offers to extend its offer for an additional 3 periods, from _____ to ____ under the same conditions and at the rates or prices specified in the Standing Offer, or at the rates or prices calculated in accordance with the formula specified in the Standing Offer. [dates to be filled in when Standing Offer is issued]

The Offeror will be advised of the decision to authorize the use of the Standing Offer for an extended period by the Canada Council 30 days before the expiry date of the Standing Offer. A revision to the Standing Offer will be issued by the Canada Council.

7.4 Delivery Points

Delivery of the requirement will be made to the Project Authority identified below.

7.5 Authorities

7.5.1 Standing Offer Authority

The Standing Offer Authority is:

Name: Julie Bolduc

Title: Procurement Specialist

Canada Council for the Arts, Procurement Centre for Expertise

Address: 150 Elgin Street Ottawa, Ontario K2P 1L4

Telephone: 613-566-4414, ext. 6003

E-mail address: julie.bolduc@canadacouncil.ca

The Standing Offer Authority is responsible for the establishment of the Standing Offer, its administration, and its revision, if applicable. Upon the making of a call-up, the Project Authority is responsible for any contractual issues relating to individual call-ups made against the Standing Offer by any Identified User.

7.5.2 Project Authority

The Project Authority for the Standing Offer is: [to be entered upon issuance of Standing Offer]

Buyer ID - Id de l'acheteur PCS01

	Name:
	Title:
	Organization:
	Address:
	Telephone:
	Facsimile:
	E-mail address:
	The Project Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the work will be carried out pursuant to a call-up under the Standing Offer and is responsible for all the technical content of the work under the resulting Contract.
7.5.3	Offeror's Representative
	The Offeror's representative for the Standing Offer is: [to be entered upon issuance of Standing Offer]
	Name:
	Title:
	Organization:
	Address:
	Telephone:
	Facsimile:
	E-mail address:
	The Contractor's representative is the point of contact for the Canada Council regarding the work being performed under this Standing Offer.

7.6 Identified Users

The Identified User authorized to make call-ups against the Standing Offer is the Project Authority.

7.7 Call-up Procedures

7.7.1 As-and-when-requested Call-ups

The work or a portion of the work to be performed under the Standing Offer will be on an "as and when requested basis" using a call-up. The work described in the call-up must be in accordance with the scope of the Standing Offer. The Offeror must not commence work until a validly issued call-up has been issued by the Canada Council and received by the Offeror. The Offeror acknowledges that any work performed before such issuance and receipt will be done at the Offeror's own risk.

7.7.2 Allocation of Call-ups

More than one Standing Offer has been issued for this requirement. The Canada Council reserves the right to allocate the issuance of any call-ups issued under this series of Standing Offers in accordance with Method A or Method B or Method C described below. The Canada Council reserves the right to modify these call-up processes but will notify the Offerors in advance prior to making any changes.

METHOD A – Competitive Call-up Allocation Process:

(i) The Canada Council may request the Offerors compete for a call-up on relatively short timeframes. In these cases, the Canada Council will request a response to the call-up from all Offerors and may select the successful Offeror(s) for award of the call-up in accordance with the provisions in article (ii). Details of the competition will be outlined in the call-up. Participation in this process is encouraged but not mandatory.

- (ii) The Canada Council will provide the Offeror with a description of the task in a draft call-up using the form specified in Annex C. Where the Canada Council intends to issue the call-up to one or more but not all Offerors, the Canada Council will also specify in writing the way in which it will select the successful contractor for that call-up, if the Canada Council decides to proceed to issue the call-up after receiving the responses. The Canada Council may, for example, choose to select the successful Offeror based entirely on price, based on the technical solution, or based on other criteria that the Canada Council will identify on a call-up -by- call-up basis.
- (iii) The process for development of the call-up and selection of the successful Offeror(s) may involve stages where input from multiple Offerors are also contemplated, including in respect of the work, the terms of the call-up, allocation of risk, the financial model or such other areas as the Canada Council determines to be appropriate. The Canada Council may also contemplate gates or other stages where there is a refinement in the number of Offerors involved in the process.
- (iv) The Canada Council will provide all the Offerors who respond to any given competitive call-up notice of the successful Offeror or the Canada Council's decision not to issue a call-up, in which case the draft call-up notice will be deemed to be cancelled.

METHOD B – Directed Call-up Allocation Process:

- (i) Based on circumstances, the Canada Council may direct a call-up to one or multiple Offerors. In such cases, the Canada Council will request a response to the call-up from the one or multiple Offeror(s) as the case may be. An Offeror may decline to respond if it so chooses.
- (ii) At the Canada Council's discretion, the identification of Offerors may be further based on a best fit for the work at hand considering such items as material submitted by the Offeror to outline their strengths, experience or capabilities, timing, available categories or resources, and other factors related to Canada Council's needs or constraints.

METHOD C – Call-up Simple Rotation Process:

(i) A simple rotation of call-up work amongst the Offerors may be implemented, to complement the above processes, at the Canada Council's discretion.

7.7.3 Call-up Instrument

The work will be authorized or confirmed by the Identified User(s) using the duly completed forms or their equivalents as identified in paragraphs 2 and 3 below.

- 1. Call-ups must be made by Identified Users' authorized representatives under the Standing Offer and must be for goods or services or combination of goods and services included in the Standing Offer at the prices and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Standing Offer.
- 2. Any of the following forms could be used which are available through PWGSC Forms
 Catalogue website:
 - PWGSC-TPSGC 942 Call-up Against a Standing Offer or
- 3. An equivalent form or electronic call-up document which contains at a minimum the following information:
 - Standing Offer number;
 - statement that incorporates the terms and conditions of the Standing Offer;
 - description and unit price for each line item;
 - total value of the call-up;
 - point of delivery;
 - · confirmation that funds are available;

confirmation that the user is an Identified User under the Standing Offer with authority to

7.8 Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

- a) the call-up against the Standing Offer, including any annexes;
- b) the articles of the Standing Offer;

enter into a contract.

- c) Annex A, Statement of Work;
- d) Annex B, Basis of Payment;
- e) the Offeror's offer dated [to be filled in upon Issuance of Standing Offer]

7.9 Certifications and Additional Information

7.9.1 Compliance

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Offeror with its offer or precedent to issuance of the Standing Offer, and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of issuance of the Standing Offer and failure to comply will constitute the Offeror in default. Certifications are subject to verification by the Canada Council during the entire period of the Standing Offer and of any resulting contract that would continue beyond the period of the Standing Offer.

7.10 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

PART 8 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from a call-up against the Standing Offer.

8.1 Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the work described in the call-up against the Standing Offer.

8.2 Term of Contract

8.2.1 Delivery Date

The delivery date will be specified in the individual call-ups.

8.3 Payment

The Canada Council will pay the Contractor upon completion and delivery of the Work in accordance with the payment provisions of the Contract if:

- a) an accurate and complete invoice and any other documents required by the Contract have been submitted in accordance with the invoicing instructions provided in the Contract;
- b) all such documents have been verified by the Canada Council;
- c) the Work delivered has been accepted by the Canada Council.

8.3.1 Basis of Payment

In consideration of the Contractor satisfactorily completing all its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor will be paid a "firm lot price", as specified in Annex "B". Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra.

8.3.2 Limitation of Price

The Canada Council will not pay the Contractor for any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the work, unless they have been approved, in writing, by the Standing Offer Authority before their incorporation into the work.

8.4 Invoicing Instructions

The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.

- The original must be forwarded to the following address for certification and payment.

 (Insert the name of the organization) [to be entered upon issuance of Standing Offer]

 (Insert the address of the organization) [to be entered upon issuance of Standing Offer]
- One (1) copy must be forwarded to the Standing Offer Authority identified under the section entitled "Authorities" of the Standing Offer.

8.5 Dispute Resolution

(a) The parties agree to maintain open and honest communication about the work throughout and after the performance of the contract.

- (b) The parties agree to consult and co-operate with each other in the furtherance of the contract and promptly notify the other party or parties and attempt to resolve problems or differences that may arise.
- (c) If the parties cannot resolve a dispute through consultation and cooperation, the parties agree to consult a neutral third party offering alternative dispute resolution services to attempt to address the dispute.

ANNEX "A"

STATEMENT OF WORK

Background

- 1.0 The Canada Council actively promotes a wide variety of projects, initiatives and campaigns each year. The Communications and Engagement team at the Canada Council does not have the capacity to lead all aspects of media planning and relations for all initiatives the organization undertakes in local, regional, and international settings, and will occasionally call upon external suppliers for short and longer-term support.
- 2.0 The Canada Council's Project Authority will:
 - Provide overall project management authority;
 - Provide the Offeror with background documents for review;
 - Assist the Offeror with obtaining Canada Council documents and data, when required;
 - Will be the source of final approval and acceptance of all deliverables; and
 - Provide feedback to the Offeror on all deliverables.
- 3.0 Offeror responsibilities include, but are not limited to:
 - public and media relations,
 - issues management,
 - media strategy,
 - communications planning,
 - campaign execution,
 - event management,
 - media monitoring and reporting.

Work

- 4.0 The selected Offeror will have the resources necessary to:
 - Help the Canada Council promote a variety of projects, initiatives, awards, and campaigns.
 - Develop, implement, and report on the agreed-upon media and/or public relations strategy (locally, regionally, nationally and/or internationally) to support and promote specific Canada Council activities, with guidance and input from the Canada Council Communications team.
 - Reach a broad and diverse audience by creating distribution lists, developing targeted approaches to media and community outreach, pitches, research, and development of story lines and managing embargos.
 - Secure media interviews, op-eds, feature publications, blog posts, and other evolving digital platforms.
 - Schedule and coordinate interviews with Canada Council prize winners and designated spokespersons.
 - Collaborate with project teams at the Canada Council and identified partners to align and amplify promotion.
- 5.0 Work, including tasks and deliverables, will be primarily completed in English; however, the team must be capable of providing services in both official languages, notably when reaching out to French media and coordinating interviews with French-speaking winners.
- There will be a requirement for Offeror representatives to attend meetings on an as-and-whenrequired basis. These meetings will be virtual. No travel will be reimbursed, as no travel will be required.

Deliverables

7.0 Deliverables can include project work plans, findings assessment reports, process documentation and other related deliverables. The Project Authority will negotiate with the Offeror the level of effort (number of days), nature and/or scope of each task at the call-up stage.

Amd. No. - N° de la modif.

ANNEX "B"

BASIS OF PAYMENT

Roles	Contract Period per diem	Option Year 1 per diem	Option Year 2 per diem	Option Year 3 per diem
	(7.5 hours/ day)	(7.5 hours/ day)	(7.5 hours/ day)	(7.5 hours/ day)
LR1: Media Relations				
LR2: Strategic Planning and Development				
LR3: Writing and Editing Press Releases (English)				
LR4: Writing and Editing Press Releases (French)				
LR5: Media monitoring				
LR6: Media Event management				
LR7: Content Marketing and Influencer Management				

Note: If additional roles would be required to provide the services requested by the Canada Council, list the role, rate and provide a description of the expected need for that type of resource.

Definition of a Day/Proration

A day is defined as 7.5 hours exclusive of meal breaks. Payment will be for days actually worked with no provision for annual leave, statutory holidays and sick leave. Time worked which is less than a day will be prorated to reflect actual time worked in accordance with the following formula:

(Hours worked x applicable firm daily rate) \div 7.5 hours.

- All proposed resources must be available to work outside normal office hours during the duration of the contract.
- b. No overtime charges will be authorized under the Contract. All time worked will be compensated according to paragraph above.

For evaluation purposes only, the evaluated price will be determined using the following formula:

For the contract period and each of the option years:

The Overall Average Daily Price will then be determined as follows:

(Average Daily Price for Option Year 1 x .2) + (Average Daily Price for Option Year 1 x .2) + (Average Daily Price for Option Year 2 x .2) + (Average Daily Price for Option Year 3 x .2) = Overall Average Daily Price

ANNEX "C"

EVALUATION GUIDE

At a minimum, one reference for each mandatory criterion must come from a Government of Canada department, agency, or Crown Corporation.

Number	Criterion	How the Offeror will meet this criterion:
M1	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years of promotional activities involving a variety of projects, initiatives, awards, and campaigns. For each referenced example, you must provide the following information: 1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of Client organization 3- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 4- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 5- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 6- Reference contact information	For each project/example, the Offeror must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.
M2	Provide one (1) example for each area noted below, completed in the last three (3) years, where you developed, implemented, and reported on media or PR strategies at: 1) the national level in at least 6 Canadian provinces/territories 2) the international level in at least two (2) countries For each referenced example, you must provide the following information: 1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of Client organization 3- Implicated Provinces/Countries 4- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 5- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 6- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 7- Reference contact information	For each project/example, the Offeror must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.
M3	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years, where you successfully implemented a plan to reach broad and diverse audience by creating distribution lists, developing targeted approaches to media and community outreach, writing pitches, research and development of story lines, and managing embargos. For each referenced example, you must provide the following information:	For each project/example, the Offeror must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.

M4	1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of client organization 3- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 4- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 5- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 6- Reference contact information Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last	For each project/example, the Offeror
	three (3) years, where you coordinated media interviews, op-eds, feature publications, blog posts or digital content. For each referenced example, you must provide the following information: 1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of Client organization 3- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 4- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 5- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 6- Reference contact information	must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.
M5	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years of when you coordinated media interviews for a spokesperson. For each referenced example, you must provide the following information: 1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of Client organization 3- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 4- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 5- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 6- Reference contact information	For each project/example, the Offeror must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.
M6	Provide two (2) examples, completed in the last three (3) years, where you successfully worked with clients to align and amplify project deliverables. For each referenced example, you must provide the following information: 1- Brief description (2 paragraph max.) of project 2- Name of Client organization 3- Duration of project (mm/yy – mm/yy) 4- Project deliverables expected from the bidder 5- Project deliverables achieved by the bidder 6- Reference contact information	For each project/example, the Offeror must provide the required information and a reference – Name, role of that person, email and/or phone number – who can verify the bidder's experience related to that project. This reference must have been a Project Leader/ Project Manager for the project being referenced.

<u>Note:</u> References will be given 5 working days to respond to the Canada Council. If a reference cannot be located or is unable to respond to the Canada Council, the bidder will have one opportunity to swap that reference with another reference who can confirm the bidder's experience for that particular project. Bidders can do this a maximum of 3 times per bid and cannot substitute another project.